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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

Dear Stakeholder,

FY2020-21 (FY21) was a mixed bag for our country as well as our company. FY21 begun amid the first 
wave and closed in the first quartile of the second wave of the pandemic striking the country. Besides the 
severe health challenges, it disrupted our economic momentum and recovery throughout the year, though 
at a varying extent. At the same time, the Country demonstrated heightened resiliency to bounce back to a 
positive GDP growth by the third quarter of the year. 

Ushering in FY21 under the shadow of a complete lockdown, we ensured adequate protection of all our 
assets – people, goodwill, manufacturing, inventory, installed equipment base, cash – as our first priority. 
Subsequently, the focus shifted to reboot ourselves in work mode as the restrictions started being lifted by 
the mid of May 2020. The recovery started thereafter with sequential increase in demand. 

But these challenges only reinforce our resolve to continue working towards Company's vision- to be a 
responsible business entity towards society and the environment. First and foremost, we would like to 
thank you for what you have done already to weather this crisis and to get our company prepared to cope 
with this situation. Your commitment makes all the difference.

We would also like to reassure you that as a company we are resilient. Over the course of 27 years, we 
have seen – and mastered – many challenging moments. We are convinced that we will overcome this one 
too.

We would also like to congratulate you all as our company completes 27 years of success in the footwear 
industry. We have been going through a major transformation over the past years and it is not easy to 
assess the transformation impact from one single year's results, but when looking back, it becomes clear 
just how much has changed. Our teams feel engaged and empowered to always do better and push our 
shared ambitions to greater heights. Our transformation journey will continue to build from what we have 
been achieving. 

We continue to take steps towards manufacturing excellence across our production units. We have been 
improving productivity and reducing manufacturing cost year on year, with the help of world class 
manufacturing concepts. Last year was no exception, wherein we were able to manage our manufacturing 
expenses extremely well, while maintaining our high standards of quality and manpower engagement.

In the year ahead, the business environment will continue to remain challenging and competitive intensity 
is likely to remain high. With our purpose driven products, passionate employees and your continued 
support, I am confident that we will continue to deliver growth that is consistent, competitive, profitable and 
responsible.

As we move ahead, you can be assured that we shall work diligently to take this Company to greater 
heights. I would also like to thank all of you, our stakeholders, some of whom have been with us for many 
years, are an integral part of our journey, in empowering our people and our company to be more. If we can 
execute our strategies, and do the things we must learn to do, the year, and the years, ahead of us could be 
deeply rewarding, and I look forward to a great journey ahead, together.

Here's hoping and praying for good health for everyone. Additionally, as we navigate the year with mass 
vaccination, I am sure, together, we shall come out of this catastrophe stronger and better than before.

With best regards
Ramesh Chand Agarwal
Chairman
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HIGHLIGHTS OF OPERATIONS 2020-21
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REWRITING HISTORY
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Success doesn't come from what you do occasionally. It comes from what you do 

consistently. The road to success is not easy to navigate but with hard work, drive and 

passion, it is possible to achieve your success. Here's a trail of our incredible journey as a 

brand.

September, 2007: Installed the PU Pouring Machine for manufacturing PU Sole 

Footwear with the Annual Capacity of 6.00 Lac pairs per annum & start the commercial 

production. Further, the Company has also installed the fully automatic computerized EVA 

injected Moulding Machine with the Annual Capacity of 6.00 Lac pairs per annual & start 

the commercial production with effect from September 29, 2007.

November, 2007: On the occasion of Resurgent Rajasthan Partnership Summit held at 

Jaipur, Signed Letter of Intent with the Government of Rajasthan for setting up of EVA 

Footwear, PU Footwear, Sports Footwear, Leather Footwear, Sports Goods and Apparels 

at Jaipur.

April, 2008: The Company was awarded a Rate Contract from Government of India for 

supply of Shoe Canvas Rubber Sole for Defense. 

November, 2013: The Company acquired a Factory Land & Building measuring about 

14325.00 Sq. Mtrs. situated at Kaledera, Jaipur for expansion of manufacture of 

footwears of latest technology and to meet the rising demand of its customers. 

May, 2015: The Company inaugurated a new plant at SP-41D, RIICO Ind. Area Kaladera, 

Tehsil - ChomuDistt- Jaipur (Raj.) on for further expansion of the Company and to meet 

rising demand of customers.
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INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

OPPORTUNITIES

THREATS

Over the recent years, Indian footwear industry has seen a change in perception from basic 
consumption to a fashion and style consumption, thanks to an increase in disposable 
income, growing fashion consciousness and increase in discretionary spending. This has 
helped the Indian footwear industry too, which is now the second largest producer and third 
largest consumer of footwears in the world. The Indian footwear industry has witnessed a 
metamorphosis growth with the advent of new retail brands in the market. The industry has 
grown by leaps & bounds in the last decade with the introduction of new technology and 
inflow of investments. Your Company is predominantly engaged in the manufacturing of 
Light Weight Hawai Chappals, Canvas Shoes, PVC Shoes, Synthetic Leather Chappals, 
Fancy Chappals and also engaged in manufacturing of EVA Injected Footwear. Your 
Company's brand name 'LEHAR' has built up a better image over the other brands 
available in the local market. The major demand in non-leather footwear sector is of PU 
Chappals because it is the cheapest footwear available in India. The PU Chappals have 
captured 75% of demand in rural areas, because in rural areas people use this product as 
multipurpose footwear.

India is attracting various established fashion brands of the world as well as retailers who 
are re-orienting their focus on the domestic footwear market, which has led to a significant 
increase in the market of retail outlets nationwide. Footwear industry has growth potential to 
be a $80 Billion industry by 2030, which means a CAGR of approximately, 20% in the next 
15 years with great potential for exports and a huge domestic market.

The footwear industry has tremendous potential to create 20 lakh new jobs at the grass root 
level primarily for weaker section of society. Women, SC/ST, poor and needy in next 5 
years, meeting the agenda of the Central Government in job creation.

The identified challenges and threats before the Indian Footwear and Leather Industry are 
India's competitiveness cheap and under invoiced imports, inadequate infrastructure, 
largest unorganised sector in comparison to organised, multiplicity of tax indication and 
trade regulation, lack of branding, capacity inadequacy, lack of skilled labour & labour 
wages, environmental issues and inadequate investment. 

The industry operates in a complex regulatory environment and fully abides by law and 
regulations of the country it operates in. Any change in the laws and regulations governing 
the leather and footwear industry may affect the business and financial performance of the 
industry.
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SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

RISK AND CONCERN 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

DISCUSSIONS ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE VIS-À-VIS OPERATIONAL 
PERFORMANCE

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Footwear, so the 
Management considers “Footwear” as the only business segment of the Company.

There is still lot of potential for growth in the turnover of the Company because the demand 
of Company's products in the market is fast increasing. The Company is specially 
developing an innovative and different type of product as per requirement of the market. 
There is a strong Demand of Eva & PU product in the market hence management has 
planned to expand its production capacity to cater the increased demand. 

Your Company continuously ascertains risks and concerns in the Footwear Industry 
affecting its present operations, future performances and business environment. In order to 
overcome such risks and concerns your Company adopts preventive measures as 
considered expedient and necessary.

The Company has an adequate system of internal controls comprising authorization levels, 
supervision, checks and balances and procedures through documented policy guidelines 
and manuals, which provide that all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported 
correctly and compliance with policies and statutes are ensured. The operational managers 
exercise their control over business processes through operational systems, procedural 
manual and financial limits of authority manual, which are reviewed and updated on an 
ongoing basis to improve the systems and efficiency of operations. The company places 
prime importance on an effective internal audit system. The internal control system is 
supplemented by internal audit, regular review by the management and well-documented 
policies. The Company has an independent internal audit system to monitor the entire 
operations and services. The top management and Audit Committee of the Board review 
the findings of the Internal Auditor and takes remedial actions accordingly.  

During this Year(2020-21), the company has made net profit of Rs. 97.64 Lakh and last year 
(2019-20) net profit was Rs.6.59 Lakh. This Year turnover of your company stands at Rs. 
14712.34 Lakh as against last year turnover Rs. 9473.42 Lakh.
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MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
FRONT INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Company always believes that its growth is closely linked with the growth and overall 
development of its employees. The Company is committed to upgrade the skill of its 
employees and to create an environment where excellence is recognized and rewarded. 
The target is to place right people at right position and to enhance the efficiency, working 
speed, competency and time management skill of its employees. The Company's 
endeavour is to create an environment where people can use all of their capabilities in 
promoting the business of the Company. Number of people employed, as at March 31, 
2021 is 778 including the contract labour.

The report may contain certain statements that the Company believes are, or may be 
considered to be “forward looking statements“ that describe our objectives, plans or goals. 
All these forward looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, 
including but limited to, Government action, economic development, risks inherent in the 
Company's growth strategy and other factors that could cause the actual results to differ 
materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward looking statements.

9



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULT OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANIES AFFAIRS

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

SHARE CAPITAL 

During the year under review, your Company's income from operations is Rs. 14712.34 
Lakh as compared to Rs. 9473.42 Lakh during the previous year. The Company has 
incurred a Profit for the period of Rs. 97.64 Lakh as compared to the profit of Rs. 6.59 Lakh 
in the previous year. 

During the year, there is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

There was no change in the Company's share capital during the year under review.

The Company's Authorised Share Capital is Rs. 15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crore) 
comprising of 1,50,00,000 (One Crore Fifty Lakh) Equity Shares of 10/- (Rupees Ten) each 
and paid up equity share capital is Rs. 13,67,87,990/- (Rupees Thirteen Crore Sixty Seven 
Lakh Eighty seven Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety only) comprising of 1,36,78,799 (One 
Crore Thirty Six Lakh Seventy Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety Nine) Equity Shares 
of 10/- each.

Rs. in lakh

BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

th Your Directors are pleased to present 27
Audited Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

Annual Report of the Company along with 

FOOTWEAR

R
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DIVIDEND AND RESERVES 

MATERIAL CHANGES EFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITIONS OF THE COMPANY

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

RISK MANAGEMENT

. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year under review.

During the year under review, no amount from profit was transferred to General Reserve.

There has been no material change and commitment affecting financial position between 
end of the financial year and date of this Board's Report.

There is no such amount lying with the company and remained unclaimed which is required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund of the Central Government.

The Board of Directors is overall responsible for identifying, evaluating and managing all 
significant risks faced by the Company. The Risk Management Policy approved by the 
Board acts as an overarching statement of intent and establishes the guiding principles by 
which key risks are managed across the Organization The Board monitors and reviews the 
implementation of various aspects of the Risk Management policy and Company's 
management of key risks, including strategic and operational risks, as well as the 
guidelines, policies and processes for monitoring and mitigating such risks under the aegis 
of the overall Business Risk Management Framework. The Company follows well 
established and detailed risk assessment and minimization procedures, which are 
periodically reviewed by the Board. The Company's Business Risk Management 
Framework helps in identifying risks and opportunities that may have a bearing on the 
organization's objectives, assessing them in terms of likelihood and magnitude of impact 
and determining a response strategy.

At present the company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the 
existence of the company. 

Your Company has an effective internal control and risk-mitigation system, which are 
constantly assessed and strengthened with new/revised standard operating procedures. 
The Company's internal control system is commensurate with its size, scale and 
complexities of its operations. The main thrust of internal audit is to test and review controls, 
appraisal of risks and business processes, besides bench marking controls with best 
practices in the industry.
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The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Internal Control Systems and suggests improvements to strengthen the 
same. The Company has a robust Management Information System which is an integral 
part of the control mechanism.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and the Statutory Auditors are periodically 
apprised of the internal audit findings and corrective actions taken. Significant audit 
observations and corrective actions taken by the management are presented to the Audit 
Committee of the Board. 

To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Directors

Retire by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of 
Association of the Company, Mr. Ramesh Chand Agrawal, Director of the Company retires 
by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. 

Re-appointment

Mr. Raj Kumar Agarwal (DIN: 00127215), Managing Director term is expiring on November 
30, 2021. On the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the 
Board of Directors at its meeting held on June 25, 2021, recommended re-appointment of 
Mr. Raj Kumar Agarwal for a further period of five years with effect from December 01, 2021.

Independent Directors 

The Company has received the necessary declarations from each of the Independent 
Directors of the Company under Section 149(7) of the Act and Regulation 25 of the Listing 
Regulations, confirming that they meet with the criteria of independence as laid down in 
Section 149(6) of the Act, along with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of 
the Listing Regulations. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their 
status as Independent Directors of the Company.The details of familiarization programme 
for Independent Directors are available on Company's website.

None of the Directors disqualifies for appointment/reappointment under Section 164 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

12
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Key Managerial Personnel

During the period under review, Ms.Sneha Sharma resigned from the post of the Company 
Secretary of the Company w.e.f 18.06.2020 due to her personal reasons. The Company 
further appointed Ms.Sneha Sharma as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f 
17.12.2020. 

After the closure of financial year

Ms. Sneha Sharma resigned from the post of the Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f 
12.06.2021 due to her personal reasons. The Company has appointed Ms.Priya Gandhi as 
Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f 14.06.2021.

There has been no change other than above in the Directors and the Key Managerial 
Personnel during the financial year 2020-21.

The Board met fourteen times during Financial Year, the details of which are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report that forms part of this Annual Report. The intervening gap 
between any two consecutive meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies 
Act, 2013, SEBI(LODR) 2015 and Secretarial Standard-1 (SS-1). 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board 
committees and individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Corporate 
Governance requirements as prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015. The performance of 
the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the 
basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board 
processes, information and functioning etc. The performance evaluation of the Executive 
Directors and Non-Executive Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The 
Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

The criteria for Directors' appointment has been set up by the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, which includes criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 
independence of a Director and other matters provided under Sub section (3) of Section 178 
of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). More details on the same are given in the Corporate 
Governance Report.

BOARD MEETINGS

BOARD EVALUATION

COMPANY'S POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

13
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VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The Company has a vigil mechanism named Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy to 
deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The same has also been displayed 
on the website of the Company.

During the year the Company had cordial relations with workers, staff and officers. The shop 
floor management is done through personal touch, using various motivational tools and 
meeting their training needs requirements. The company has taken initiative for safety of 
employees and implemented regular safety audit, imparted machine safety training, 
wearing protective equipment, etc. The Company believes in empowering its employees 
through greater knowledge, team spirit and developing greater sense of responsibility. 

The Company has in place a policy on Gender Equality, Gender Protection, Prevention of 
Sexual Harassment and Redressal System in line with the requirements of the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. All 
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The 
Company has also constituted an internal committee to consider and address sexual 
harassment complaints in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.    

No complaints pertaining to sexual harassment were received and/ or disposed off during 
FY 2020-21.

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 (1) (i) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 2014 in respect of ratio of remuneration of each 
director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the Financial 
Year, will be made available for inspection at its registered office of the Company during the 
working hours for a period of twenty one days before the date of Annual General Meeting of 
the company pursuant to Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 and members, if any 
interested in obtaining the details thereof, shall make specific request to the Company 
Secretary and Compliance officer of the Company in this regard.
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COMMITMENT TO QUALITY AND ENVIRONMENT

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (CSR)

AUDITORS AND AUDIT REPORT

LOANS AND INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY

Your Company recognizes quality and productivity as a pre-requisite for its operations and 
has implemented ISO 9001 and ISO 14001. Continuous efforts to preserve the environment 
are pursued.

As per Provisions of Section 135 of the Company Act 2013, and rules made there under, the 
CSR is not applicable on your company for the Financial Year 2020-21.

Statutory Auditor

M/s Ravi Sharma & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 015143C), Jaipur, 
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five consecutive years 

rd rd
at the 23  AGM held in the year 2017 to hold office from the conclusion of 23  AGM until the 

th
conclusion of 28  AGM to be held in the year 2022. 

There are no qualifications, adverse remarks reservations or disclaimer made by M/s Ravi 
Sharma & Co., Statutory Auditors, in their report for the financial year ended March 31, 
2021. The notes to the Accounts referred to in the Auditor's Report are self-explanatory and 
therefore do not call for any further explanation and comments.

Secretarial Auditor

The Board has appointed M/s. Naredi Vinod & Associates, Company Secretaries, to 
conduct the Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2020-21. The Secretarial Audit Report for 
the financial year ended March 31, 2021 is attached as Annexure-A to this Board's Report. 
The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification or reservation or adverse 
remark or disclaimer.

Cost Records and Cost Audit 

Provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding maintenance of cost 
records and audit thereof is not applicable to your Company.

Details of loans and investments by the Company to other body corporate or persons are 
given inthe Notes to the financial statements.

15
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DEPOSITS

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

The Company does not have any subsidiary as on March 31, 2021.

The related party transactions entered into during the year under review were on arm's 
length basis, in the ordinary course of business and in compliance with the Policy on 
Related Party Transactions of the Company. During the year, the Company has not entered 
into any contracts /arrangements / transactions with related parties which could be 
considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related 
party transactions. The provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and/or 
Regulation 23 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 were duly complied. The Related 
Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and the Board for their approval 
on quarterly basis. 

The disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC - 2 is not applicable to your Company. The related party 
transaction Policy as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company's website at the 
following weblink: https://www.leharfootwear.com/

The details of transactions / contracts/ arrangements entered by the Company with Related 
parties during the financial year are set out in the Notes to the Financial Statement.

Particulars required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, regarding conservation of energy, technology 
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, are given in Annexure-B and Forms an 
integral part of this Report.

The Details forming part of extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9, as required under 
section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, is included in this report as Annexure-C and forms 
an integral part of this report.
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LISTING

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The equity shares of your Company are listed with the BSE Limited.

The shares of your Company are being traded in electronic form and the Company has 
established connectivity with both the depositories i.e. National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). In view of the 
numerous advantages offered by the Depository system, Members are requested to avail 
the facility of dematerialization of shares with either of the Depositories as aforesaid. As on 
March 31, 2021, 99.99% of the share capital stands dematerialized.

Pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, report on the Corporate Governance alongwith a 
certificate from Practicing Company Secretary is annexed to this Annual Report.

Statements in this report, describing the Company's objectives, expectations and/or 
anticipations may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable Securities Law and 
Regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those stated in the statement. 
Important factors that could influence the Company's operations include global and 
domestic supply and demand conditions affecting selling prices of finished goods, 
availability of inputs and their prices, changes in the Government policies, regulations, tax 
laws, economic developments within the country and outside and other factors such as 
litigation and industrial relations. The Company assumes no responsibility in respect of the 
forward-looking statements, which may undergo changes in future on the basis of 
subsequent developments, information or events.

To the best of knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation 
obtained by them, in terms of section 134(3) (c) your directors confirm that:

a) in the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards 
have been along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied 
consistently and have made judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true & fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2021;
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c) proper and sufficient care has been  taken for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;
e) internal financial controls have been laid down to be followed by the company 

and such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively; 

f) proper system have been devised to ensure compliance with the provision of 
all applicable law and that such system were adequate and operating 
effectively.

The report on Internal Financial Control forms part of Independent Audit report.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to 
regulate trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code 
requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company's shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of 
Company shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in possession of 
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when the 
Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the Code.

All Directors on the Board and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the 
Code.

There are no significant and material order passed by the Regulators/ court that would impact the 
going concern status of the company and its future operations.

Your company has paid the Annual listing fee of BSE Limited for the Financial Year 2021-22

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE REGULATOR OR COURT

PAYMENT OF LISTING FEE
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APPRECIATION
Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to employees at all levels for their 
hard work, dedication and commitment towards Company's operations and performance. Your 
Directors also wish to place on record their gratitude for the valuable assistance and co-operation 
extended to the Company by the Central Government, State Governments, banks, institutions, 
investors and customers.

By the order of the Board
For Lehar Footwears Limited
SD/-
Ramesh Chand Agarwal
Chairman
DIN: 00108287

Date: 11.08.2021

Place: Jaipur
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Annexure-A to the Board's Report

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED  MARCH 31, 2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Lehar Footwears Limited

A-243(A) Road No. 06, V.K.I.Area,

Jaipur (Rajasthan).

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Lehar Footwears Limited 
(hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by Lehar Footwears Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year 
ended on March 31, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules 
made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under 
by the Depositories with regard to dematerialization / rematerialization of 
securities and reconciliation of records of dematerialized securities with all 
securities issued by the Company; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
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Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
Company during the Audit Period)

(Not applicable to the 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

1. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

2. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 which came into effect from 15 May 2015;

3. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines,1999; (Not applicable as there 
was no reportable event during the period under review)

5. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable as there was no reportable event during 
the period under review)

6. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client;

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable as there was no reportable event during 
the period under review)

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
1998; (Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the period 
under review)

9. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

10. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

11. The EPF & Misc. Provisions Act, 1952;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements and Uniform listing Agreement entered into by the 
Company with Bombay Stock Exchange;
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During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The 
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

2. During the period under review Ms. Sneha Sharma resigned from the post of the 
Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f 18/06/2020. The Company further 
appointed Ms. Sneha Sharma as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f 
17/12/2020.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and to ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Date: 17/06/2021

Place: Jaipur

For Naredi Vinod and Associates
Company Secretaries

SD/-
Vinod Kumar Naredi
Proprietor
ACS 20453
CP No. 7994
UDIN No. A020453C000480506
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Annexure A

To,

The Members,
Lehar Footwears Limited
A-243(A) Road No. 06, V.K.I. AREA,
Jaipur 302013 (Rajasthan).

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to 
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the 
secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and 
practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records 
and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about 
the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination 
was limited to the verification of procedures on random test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the 
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Jaipur
Date: 17/06/2021

For Naredi Vinod and Associates
Company Secretaries

SD/-
Vinod Kumar Naredi
Proprietor
ACS 20453
CP No. 7994
UDIN No. A020453C000480506
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Annexure–B to the Board's Report

Information Under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors' Report 
for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Technology Imported - No technology has been imported by 
  the Company.

Year of Import - N.A

Has technology been fully absorbed - N.A

If not fully absorbed, areas where this

has not taken place, reasons therefore        - N.A

and future plans of action 

The expenditure incurred on Research - Company has not incurred any                    
and Development   expenditure on Research and Development.

FOOTWEAR
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A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Efforts in brief, made towards Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:

The Technology used for manufacturing of products of the Company is fully absorbed and new 
innovations in process control, product development, cost reduction and quality 
improvements are being made on continuous basis.

Benefits derived as a result of the above Efforts:

Improvement in overall productivity, quality of the products and reduced process scrap and 
cost.

In case of imported technology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year), following information may be furnished:
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

By the order of the Board

For Lehar Footwears Limited

SD/-

Ramesh Chand Agarwal

Chairman 

DIN: 00108287 

Date: 11.08.2021

Place: Jaipur

FOOTWEAR

R

a) Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase exports, development of 
new export markets for products and services and export plans: NIL.

b) Total foreign exchange used and earned: 
Used: $688896.60

Earned: $ 1592575.47

  AED 229316.65
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Form No. MGT-9
Extract of Annual Return

as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2021

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

ANNEXURE- C to the Board's Report
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(viii)

(ix) QUALIFIED FOREIGN
INVESTOR
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TOTAL
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Amount in Lakh

20.48 20.48 20.48 61.44

4.62 4.62 4.62 13.86

25.10 75.3025.10 25.10
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Amount in Lakh

11.70 1.29 14.19 27.18

3.31 - - 3.31

15.01 1.29 14.19 30.49
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By the order of the Board
For Lehar Footwears Limited

Sd/-
Ramesh Chand Agarwal
DIN: 00108287 
Chairman 

Date: 11.08.2021
Place : Jaipur
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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COMPANY'S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Corporate Governance is an integral part of Company's philosophy. Corporate 

Governance is the application of best management practices, compliance of laws and 

adherence to ethical standards to achieve the Company's objective of enhancing 

shareholders and stakeholders' value. The Company's philosophy on the 'Code of 

Governance' is based on compliance of applicable provisions and requires exchange 

of relevant information and appropriate disclosures to each group of stakeholders, 

connected with the area of common interest/stake between the Company and the 

Stakeholder. Apart from complying with the statutory requirements, effective systems 

and practices towards improving transparency and internal controls have been 

institutionalized. The Company firmly believes that corporate governance standards 

should go beyond the law and must satisfy the spirit of law and not just the letter of the 

law. This is a way of life at Lehar Footwears Limited and is driven relentlessly across 

the organization.

Your Company endeavours to have a judicious mix of Executive, Non-executive and 

Independent Directors, so as to have independence on the Board and separate its 

function of governance from that of management. Your Company also has a woman 

Independent Director which brings diversity on the Board.

As on March 31, 2021, the Composition of Board of Directors is as follows:
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The composition and category of the Board of Directors are as follows:

The Board is primarily responsible for the overall direction of the Company's activities. All the 

Directors have a good understanding of important business aspects.

The day to day business is conducted by the officers and the managers of the Company 
under the control & supervision of Managing Director / Executive Director of the Company. 
The Board generally meets every quarter to review and discuss the performance of the 

INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD AMONG OTHERS

FOOTWEAR
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# excludes directorships in (1) Private Limited Companies (2) Section 8 Companies (3) Companies 

incorporated outside India and (4) Alternate Directorships. Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee of public limited companies have been considered for committee position.

None of the Directors are related to the other Directors except Mr. Ramesh Chand Agarwal, 

Mr. Raj Kumar Agarwal and Mr.Naresh Kumar Agarwal.

Mr.Naresh Kumar Agarwal is the son of Mr. Ramesh Chand Agarwal and Mr. Raj Kumar 

Agarwal is younger brother of Mr. Ramesh Chand Agarwal.

During the year under review, Fourteen Board Meetings were held on May 19, 2020;June 

18, 2020;July 28, 2020; August 07, 2020; September 14, 2020; October 07, 2020; 

November 12, 2020; November 20, 2020; December 17, 2020; December 31, 2020; 

January 08, 2021; January 27, 2021; February 12, 2021 and March 13, 2021and the time 

gap between two meetings did not exceeded 120 days. All statutory and other important 

items / information were placed before the Board for approval / review.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETING AND ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS
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SKILLS/EXPERTISE COMPETENCE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Company, its future plans, strategies and other pertinent issues relating to the Company. 

The Board performs the following specific functions in addition to its other functions:

• Review, monitor and approve major financial and business strategies and corporate 
actions.

• Assess critical risks facing the Company, review options for their mitigation.
• Provide counsel on the selection, evaluation, development and compensation of 

senior management.

The Board has complete access to all the relevant information of the Company. The 

quantum and quality of information supplied by the management to the Board goes well 

beyond the minimum requirement stipulated under Companies Act, 2013, Secretarial 

Standard on the meetings of the Board issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Directors may seek necessary clari?cation from the 

management on any information provided to them and also have the right to seek external 

legal advice as may be required for the performance of their duties. 
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SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

INDUCTION & TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS (FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME 

FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS)

EVALUATION OF THE BOARD'S PERFORMANCE

As stipulated by the Code for Independent Directors under Schedule IV of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 

2015, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 

12.02.2021 to review the performance of Non-independent Directors (including the 

Chairman) and the Board as whole. The Independent Directors also reviewed the quality, 

content and timeliness of the flow of information between the Management and the Board 

and it's Committees which is necessary to effectively and reasonably perform and 

discharge their duties. The Independent Directors found the performance of Non-

Independent Directors (including Chairman) and the Board as well as flow of information 

between the Management and the Board to be satisfactory. All independent directors were 

present in the meeting.

Letter of Appointment(s) are issued to Independent Directors setting out in detail, the terms 

of appointment, duties, responsibilities and expected time commitments. Each newly 

appointed Director is taken through a formal induction program including the presentation 

from the Chairman, Managing Director, CEO & Executive Director on the Company's 

manufacturing, marketing, finance and other important aspects and information is 

available at www.leharfootwear.com. 

The Board has a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and as well as that of its 

Committees and individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board based on the 
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criteria laid down by Nomination and Remuneration Committee which included attendance, 

contribution at the meetings and otherwise, independent judgement, safeguarding of 

minority shareholders interest, adherence to Code of Conduct and Business ethics, 

monitoring of regulatory compliance, risk assessment and review of Internal Control 

Systems,  etc.

The Board of Directors has constituted Board Committees to deal with specific areas and activities 

which concern the Company and needs a closer review. The Board Committees are formed with 

approval of the Board and function under their respective defined roles. These Board Committees 

play an important role in the overall management of day-to-day affairs and governance of the 

Company. The Board Committees meet at regular intervals, takes necessary steps to perform its 

duties entrusted by the Board. To ensure good governance, the minutes of the Committee meetings 

are placed before the Board for its review. 

The Board has constituted the following Committees:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Your Company has a duly constituted Audit Committee and its composition meets the 

requirement of Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. The audit Committee of the Company comprised three Non-Executive Director and all 

of the Committee members are independent. All members of the Committee are ?nancially 

literate and have accounting or related ?nancial management expertise as mandated by 

Regulation 18 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

4 (Four) Audit Committee meetings were held on  July 28, 2020; September 14, 2020;  

November 12, 2020 and February 12, 2021  during the financial year and the gap between 

the two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The Chairman of the Audit 
thCommittee attended the last 26 AGM held on December 30, 2020.

COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. Overseeing the Company's ?nancial reporting process and the disclosure of its 
?nancial information to ensure correct, sufficient and credible financial information.

2. Recommending to the Board appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment 
of auditors of the listed entity.

3. Approving payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them.
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4. Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's 
report thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular 
reference to:

i) Matters required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement to 
be included in the Board's Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of 
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

ii) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the 
same;

iii) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of 
judgement by the management;

iv) Significant adjustments made in financial statements arising out of audit 
findings;

v) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 
statements;

vi) Disclosure of any related party transactions; and

vii) Qualifications in draft audit report.

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval

6. Monitoring and reviewing with the management, the statement of uses/ application 
of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), 
the statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 
monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter

7. Reviewing and monitoring the auditors independence and performance, and 
effectiveness of audit process

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with 
related parties

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems

12. Reviewing, with the management, the performance of statutory auditors and 
internal auditors, adequacy of internal control systems
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13. Formulating the scope, functioning, periodicity and methodology for conducting the 
internal audit

14. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of 
the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the 
department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit

15. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow-up thereon

16. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into 

matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control 
systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board

17. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature 
and scope of audit as well as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern

18. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in the payment to depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) 
and creditors

19. To review the functioning of the Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower mechanism 
Approval of appointment of the CFO (i.e. the whole time Finance Director or any 
other person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after 
assessing qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee.

21. Reviewing financial statements, in particular the investments made by the 
Company's unlisted subsidiaries

22. Reviewing the following information:

i) The Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of 
operations;

ii) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit 
Committee), submitted by management;

iii) Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory 
auditors; 

iv) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and 

v) Reviewing the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief  internal 
auditor/internal auditor(s)
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The Audit Committee has the following powers:

I. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

II. To seek information from any employee.

III. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

IV. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers 
necessary.

At the invitation of the committee, the Statutory Auditor attended the Audit Committee 
Meetings to answer and clarify the queries raised at the committee meetings.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a duly constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee, which 

amongst others is responsible for identifying and recommending persons who are qualified 

to become directors or appointed as part of senior management of the Company and laying 

down remuneration policy.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be 

appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid 

down and to recommend to the Board their appointment and/or removal

2. To carry out evaluation of every Director's performance

3. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a Director, and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to 

the remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other 

employees

4. To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the 

Board

5. To devise a policy on Board diversity

6. To recommend/review remuneration of the Managing Director(s) and Whole-

time Director(s) based on their performance and defined assessment criteria
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7. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time 

and / orenforced by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as 

may be applicable

8. To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the 

performance of its duties.

The Committee met once on 17.12.2021 during the year 2020-21. The Composition and 

attendance of the members at the Committee meetings were as follows:

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for performance 

evaluation of Directors which are as under-

 AREAS OF EVALUATION

• Fulfilment of responsibilities as a Director as per the Companies Act, 2013, 

SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and applicable Company policies and 

practices.

• In case of the concerned Director being Independent Director, Executive 

Director, Chairperson of the Board or Chairperson or Member of the 

Committees with reference to such status and role.

• Board and/or Committee meetings attended.

• General Meetings attended.

REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

(A) There was no pecuniary relationship or transaction between the Non-

Executive Directors and the company during the financial year 2020-21.

(B) The Non-executive Directors does not have any other material pecuniary 

relationship or transactions with the Company during the year. Company 

does not pay any Remuneration to the Non-Executive Directors 
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a) The Non-executive Directors did not have any other material pecuniary 

relationship or transactions with the Company during the year. 

b) No Remunerations was paid to the Non-Executive Directors during the Financial 

Year 2020-21.

c) No Sitting fees were paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending Board 

Meetings or Committee Meetings during the Financial Year 2020-21. 

d) No commission has been paid to any Director. 

e) Severance Fees: NIL

f) Number of Equity Shares held by Non-Executive Directors: NIL

g) An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company

h) The appointment is subject to termination by giving one month notice in writing on 

either side.

(C) DETAILS OF THE REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

ON MARCH, 31 2021

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The details of the remuneration paid during the year 2020-21 to the Managing/Executive 

Director(s) are as follows:

Lakh)

25.10
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• The appointment is subject to termination by giving one month notice in writing on 

either side. 

• The Company does not have at present any scheme for grant of Stock Options to 

its Directors or Employees.

STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is responsible amongst others to resolve the 

grievances of the security holders of the Company. In addition, the Committee approves 

matters pertaining to allotment/ rematerialisation / transfer of shares etc. as and when 

required.

COMPOSITION & MEETING.

The Committee met once on 13.03.2021 during the year 2020-21. The Composition and 

attendance of the members at the Committee meetings were as follows:

25.10

25.10

Lakh)
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors has framed a Risk Management Policy for identification, assessment, 

monitoring, mitigation and reporting of risks and minimization procedures. The provision of the 

formation of Risk Management Committee is applicable only to 1000 listed companies by market 

capitalization. Therefore, the Risk Management Committee has been dissolved with effect from 

March 13, 2021.

Details of Annual General Meetings held during last three years, are as follows:

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
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No special resolution requiring postal ballot is being proposed at the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting.

The company has not held Extraordinary General Meeting during the F.Y. 2020-21.

During the year pursuant the provision of the section 110 of the company's act, 2013, read 

with Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, no resolution has been 

passed through Postal Ballot in the Company. 

The Company interacts with its investors through multiple forms of corporate and financial 

communications such as annual reports, result announcements. Quarterly results are 

usually published in English and Hindi daily newspapers, viz., Financial Express and 

Business Remedies. These results are also made available on the website of the Company 

www.leharfootwear.com and also posted at the online portal of BSE. The Company's 

website doesn't displays official news releases and presentations made to the Institutional 

Investors or to the Analysts. No presentation has been made to Institutional Investors / 

Analysts by the Company. The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) forms part 

of the Annual Report.

EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

POSTAL BALLOT

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
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DISCLOSURES

COMPLIANCE WITH SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING 

OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

1. There were no transactions of material nature with related parties during the year that 

had potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.
2. The Company has announced Whistle Blower policy. All the personnel of the company 

have the access to the Audit Committee.
3. The company has framed Related Party Transaction Policy and is placed on the 

Company's website www.leharfootwear.com
4. During the financial year ended March 31, 2021 the company did not engage in 

commodity hedging activities.
5. The Company is in compliance with corporate governance requirements as specified 

in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
6. Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice confirming that the directors are not 

debarred or disqualified by SEBI/MCA or any statutory authority is published as an 

annexure to this Report.

Mandatory Requirements

The Company is fully compliant with the applicable mandatory requirements under Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.

Discretionary Requirements

A. The Board

Since the Company does not have a Non-Executive Chairman, it does not maintain such 

office.
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B. Shareholder Rights

Half yearly financial results are forwarded to the Stock Exchanges and uploaded on the 

website of the Company like quarterly results.

C. Modified opinion(s) in audit report

During the year under review, there was no audit qualification in the Auditors' Report on the 

Company's financial statements.

D. Separate posts of chairperson and chief executive officer 

The post of the Chairman of the Company and the CEO are held by different persons.

E. Reporting of internal auditor

The Chief Internal Auditor of the Company attends the meeting of the Audit Committee on 

regular basis. Internal audit ?ndings are reported directly to the Audit Committee.

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members 

of the Board and all employees in the course of day to day business operations of the 

company. The Company believes in “Zero Tolerance” against bribery, corruption and 

unethical dealings / behaviours of any form and the Board has laid down the directives to 

counter such acts. The Code has been posted on the Company's website 

www.leharfootwear.com.The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct 

which is expected to be followed by the Directors and the designated employees in their 

business dealings and in particular on matters relating to integrity in the work place, in 

business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The Code gives guidance through 

examples on the expected behaviour from an employee in a given situation and the 

reporting structure.

All the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance 

with the Code. All Management Staff were given appropriate training in this regard.

Declaration by Chief Executive officer regarding compliance by board members and senior 

management personnel with the company's code of conduct is appended at the end of this 

report.

The Company has followed the treatment laid down in the Accounting Standards prescribed 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, in the preparation of financial statements. 

There is no audit qualifications in the Company's financial statements for the year under 

review.

CODE OF CONDUCT

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT
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DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

Details of Unclaimed shares lying in unclaimed suspense account

*Source: www.bseindia.com
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(a) Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense 
account lying at the beginning of the year-1

(b) Number of shareholders who approached listed entity for transfer of shares from 
suspense account during the year-0

(c) Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from suspense account 
during the year-0

(d) Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense 
account lying at the end of the year-1

(e) That the voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of 
such shares claims the shares.

MARKET PRICE DATA (BSE)*  

Details of high and low price and the number of shares traded during each month in the last
financial year on BSE Limited are as under
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INVESTORS' SERVICE AND SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2021

Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. is the registrar and transfer agent of the Company. All share 

transfers and related operations are conducted by registrar and transfer agent of the 

Company, which is registered with Securities and Exchange Board of India. The Company 

has a Stakeholders' Relationship Committee for redressing the complaints/queries of 

shareholders and investors.

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY

The Company's shares are currently traded only in dematerialized form at The Bombay Stock 

Exchange Ltd. To facilitate trading in dematerialised form, the Company has tied up 

arrangements with both the present depositories' viz. National Securities Depository Ltd. 

(NSDL) & Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL). Shareholders can open Demat 

Account with any Depository participant registered with any of these depositories. As on 

March 31, 2021 about 100% of the Company's shares were held in dematerialized form. 
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OUTSTANDING GDRS /ADRS/WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS

CERTIFICATION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION 

FEES TO STATUTORY AUDITOR 

PLANT LOCATION

There were no outstanding GDRs /ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments.

Certificate fromPractising Company Secretaries on Corporate Governance, as required 

by Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015, is incorporated in this Annual 

Report.

The Certificate required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, 

duly signed by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company 

was placed before the Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held on 

25.06.2021. The Certificate also forms part of this Report.

Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory 

auditor and all entities in the network firm/ network entity of which the statutory auditor is a 

part was Rs. 7.26 lakhs /- for the year under review.

Company has the following manufacturing and operating divisions

UNIT1.A-243 (A), Road No. 6, V. K. I. Area, Jaipur – 302013

UNIT2.G-685, Road No. 9F2, V. K. I. Area, Jaipur – 302013

UNIT3.F-263, Road No.13, V. K. I. Area, Jaipur – 302013

UNIT4.SP-41D, Kaladera Industrial Area, Tehsil Chomu, District Jaipur
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BIG SHARE SERVICES PVT LTD

Bharat Tin Works Building, 1st Floor,

Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, 

Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai 400059

Ph.91-22-40430200 Fax No: 91-22-28475207

E-mail: investor@bigshareonline.com

For any other query the investors may please contact to:

Company Secretary

Lehar Footwears Limited

A-243(A) Road No.6 V.K.I.Area,

Jaipur - 302013 (Rajasthan) 

Tel No: 91-141-4157777 

E-mail: csco@leharfootwear.com

            info@leherfootwear.com

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE FOR SHARE TRANSFER AND RELATED 

MATTERS

For any assistance regarding dematerialization of Shares, Transfer / Transmission of shares, 

change of address or any other query relating to shares, the investors may please contact 

with the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company at the following address:
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CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

For Lehar Footwears Limited

SD/- 

Sanjay Kumar Agarwal

Chief Executive Officer    

For Lehar Footwears Limited

SD/- 

Rakesh Kumar Soni

Chief Financial Officer                                                                                               

Place : Jaipur

Date: 25.06.2021
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The Board of Directors

Lehar Footwears Limited

We, Sanjay Kumar Agarwal, Chief Executive Officer and Rakesh Kumar Soni, Chief Financial Officer 
of Lehar Footwears Limited, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

1. We have reviewed financial statements and Cash Flow statements for the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2021.

2. To the best of our knowledge and information: 

i. These statements do not contain any untrue statement or omit any material 
fact or contain statements that might be misleading.

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's 
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable 
laws and regulations.

3. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the 
company's code of conduct.

4. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for 
financial reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control 
systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the  
auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in design or operation of such internal 
controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take 
to rectify these deficiencies. 

5. We have indicated to auditors and the audit committee:

a. Significant Changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year, 
if any.

b. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any and same 
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

c. Any instances of significant fraud of which we are aware, that involve the management 
or other employees who have a significant role in the company's internal control 
system.

6. We affirm that we have not denied any personnel access to the audit committee of the 
Company (in respect of matters involving alleged misconduct) and we have provided 
protection to whistle blowers from unfair termination and other unfair or prejudicial 
employment practices.

7. We further declare that all Board members and senior management personnel have 
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for the year covered by this 
report.
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

For Lehar Footwears Limited

SD/- 

Sanjay Kumar Agarwal

Chief Executive Officer    

Place : Jaipur

Date: 25.06.2021

By the order of the Board
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To, 

The Members of 

Lehar Footwears Limited

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Sub: Declaration by the Chief Executive Officer under Regulation 34(3) read with 

Schedule V (D) of SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015

I, Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agarwal, Chief Executive Officer of the Company do and hereby 

acknowledge and confirm that during the financial year 2020-21, to the best of my 

knowledge and belief, the Board of Directors and senior management have not violated any 

of the provisions of the Code of Conduct as applicable to the Executive Directors and 

Members of Senior Management of the Company or any policies or legal/ regulatory 

requirement of the Company, directly or indirectly applicable to the job or responsibility.
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CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of

Lehar Footwears Limited.

Place: Jaipur

Date: 05/08/2021

For Naredi Vinod and Associates
Company Secretaries
                                     
Sd/-                      
Vinod Kumar Naredi
Proprietor 
ACS 20453
CP No. 7994

UDIN No. A020453C000740029
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1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Lehar  

Footwears Limited for the year ended on March 31, 2021 as stipulated in SEBI (LODR) 

regulation, 2015

2. The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 

Management. Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof 

adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate 

Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of the opinion on the financial statements 

of the Company.   

3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 

stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI (LODR) regulation, 2015.

4. We state that no investor grievance is pending for a period exceeding one month against the 

company as per the records maintained by the shareholders / Investors grievance 

committee.

5. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company.
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the

 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Members,
Lehar Footwears Limited
(Formerly known as Lawreshwar Polymers Limited)
A-243(A) Road No. 06, V.K.I.Area,
Jaipur (Rajasthan).

Place: Jaipur

Date: 05/08/2021

For Naredi Vinod and Associates
Company Secretaries
                                     
Sd/-                      
Vinod Kumar Naredi
Proprietor 
ACS 20453
CP No. 7994

UDIN No. A020453C000739963
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We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Lehar 

Footwears Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me/us by the Company for the purpose of 

issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10 (i) of the Securities 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number 

(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its 

officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending 

on March 31, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management 

of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an 

assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Lehar Footwears Limited 

(formerly known as Lawreshwar Polymers Limited)

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Lehar Footwears Limited 
(formerly known as Lawreshwar Polymers Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Change in Equity and Statement of Cash Flow for the year 
then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Standalone 
Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 
March 2021, and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the 
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in 
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forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We 
have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in 
our report.

Emphasis of Matter Paragraph
We invite attention to Note No- 37 to the financial statements regarding uncertainties associated 
with the COVID-19 pandemic and impact assessment made by the company on its business and 
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021, the said assessment made by the 
management is highly dependent upon how the circumstances evolve in subsequent periods.

Our Opinion is not modified on the above matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and auditor's Report Thereon 

• The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to 
Board's Report, Management Discussion and Analysis Report and Business Responsibility 
Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditors' report 
thereon. These reports are expected to be made available to us after the date of this audit 
report.

• Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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• In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of audit or otherwise appears to be material misstatement.

• If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Management's Responsibility for the standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, state of affairs, profit (including 
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the  Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 
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statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the standalone financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in 
the “Annexure I” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent 
applicable that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash 
Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 
March 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in “Annexure II”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on 
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial 
controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

stgiven to us, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31  March 2021, has 
been paid/provided by the company to its directors in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on 
its financial position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 34 to the 
standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contract including derivatives contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. here were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

For Ravi Sharma & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 015143C

Paras Bhatia
Partner
Membership No: 418196
UDIN : 21418196AAAACT8346

th
Date: 25  June 2021
Place: Jaipur

Sd/-                      
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditors' Report

With reference to the “Annexure I” referred to paragraph 2 under Report on Other Legal & 
Regulatory Requirement in the Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Lehar 
footwears Limited (formerly known as Lawreshwar Polymers Limited) on the Standalone Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, we report the following :

(i), (a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars 
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

 (b) All the assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and 
there is a regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties 
are held in the name of the company.

(ii)  (a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our 
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable

 (b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book 
records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

 (c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and on 
the basis of our examination of the records of inventory, the company is maintaining 
proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been properly 
dealt with in the books of accounts.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted 
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) & (c) of the order are not applicable to the company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company 
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and I86 of the Companies Act, 2013 In 
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given.

(v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public within the meaning of the 
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, Provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any 
other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder.

(vi) According to the information & explanation given to us, the Central Government has not 
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prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 in respect of manufacture of its products by the company.

(vii)  In respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our     
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of 
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, E m p l o y e e s '  
State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services tax, duty of Customs, Cess and other 
material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the year by the 
Company with the appropriate authorities except for a few delays.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount 
payable in respect of the aforesaid due were outstanding as at March 31, 2021 for a period 
of more than six months from the date of becoming payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no pending dues of 
Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services tax, duty 
of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues which are not deposited on 
account of dispute.

(viii) According to information and explanation given to us by the management, as on balance 
sheet date the company is not in default w.r.t. repayment of loans and borrowings to a 
financial institutions, banks or government, further the company has not issued any 
debentures.

(ix) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by 
the management during the year under review, the company did not raised moneys by 
way of initial public offer or further public offer including debt instruments. To the best of 
our knowledge and belief and according to the Information and Explanation given to us, 
term loans availed by the company were prima facie applied by the company during the year 
for the purpose for which the loan were Obtained.

 (x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been 
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided managerial 
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of 
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) According to information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not a 
Nidhi Company as prescribed in Section 406 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 
(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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For Ravi Sharma & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 015143C

Paras Bhatia
Partner
Membership No: 418196
UDIN : 21418196AAAACT8346

th
Date: 25  June 2021
Place: Jaipur

(xiii) According to information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the 
records of the company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
section 177 and 188 of the Act, and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in 
the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the 
records of the company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company 
and hence not commented upon.

(xv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the 
records of the company, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xvi) According to information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to be 
registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon.

Sd/-                      
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Annexure II to the Independent Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 1(A)(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report of even date to the members of Lehar Footwears Limited (formerly known 
as Lawreshwar Polymers Limited).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial 
Statements of Lehar Footwears Limited (formerly known as Lawreshwar Polymers Limited) 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of 
the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and 
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
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internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that:

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Ravi Sharma & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 015143C

Paras Bhatia
Partner
Membership No: 418196
UDIN : 21418196AAAACT8346

th
Date: 25  June 2021
Place: Jaipur

Sd/-                      
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BALANCE SHEET AS MARCH 31, 2021

(Rs. in Lakh)
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2021

(Rs. in Lakh)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Rs. in Lakh)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

1 Corporate Information

"Lehar Footwears Limited" formerly known as "Lawreshwar Polymers Limited" (the 
company) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on Bombay Stock 
Exchange in India. The company is engaged in manufacturing and selling of a 
reputed brand "LEHAR" footwear in domestic and overseas market. 

The Board of Directors approved the Financial Statements for the year ended March 
31, 2021 and authorised for issue on June 25, 2021.

2 Significant accounting policies

The following are the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of 
these financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the 
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements  have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (referred to as "Ind AS") as prescribed under Section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except 
for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each 
reporting period and land has been carried at revalued amount, as explained in the 
accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the 
consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued 
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting 
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

2.2 Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees ("INR") which is the 
Company's presentation currency and the functional currency for its operations. All 
financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest lakhs with 
two decimal places unless stated otherwise.
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2.3 Use of Estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires 
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, 
judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the year.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to the accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised and future periods affected. 

Significant judgments and estimates relating to carrying value of assets and liabilities 
include useful lives of Property,  plant and equipment , impairment of Property,  plant 
and equipment , investments , provision for employee benefits and other provisions, 
recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and contingencies.

2.4  Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non Current

All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of product & activities of the Company 
and their realization in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has determined its 
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current 
classification of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified 
as non-current assets and liabilities.

2.5 Recognition of Revenue and Expenditure

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of 
promised goods or services to a customer at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitled to in exchange for 
those goods or services.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the 
amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that 
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is 
net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered 
by the Company as part of the contract. This variable consideration is estimated 
based on the expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is 
recognized only to the extent that it is highly probable that the amount will not be 
subject to significant reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved.

Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the control on the goods have 
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been transferred to the customer. The performance obligation in case of sale of 
product is satisfied at a point in time i.e., when the material is shipped to the customer 
or on delivery to the customer, as may be specified in the contract.

Interest

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the 
amount outstanding and the   effective interest rate method. Interest income is 
included under the head "Other Income" in statement of profit and loss.

Export Incentive

Duty drawback is recognized on the acrrual basis whereas MEIS credit income is 
recognized on receipt basis.

Expenses

All expenses are charged in statement of profit and loss as and when they are 
incurred.

2.6 Property, Plant & Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (except land) are stated at cost comprising of 
purchase price and any initial directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its 
working condition for its intended use , less accumulated depreciation (other than 
land) and impairment loss, if any.  The Land has been carried at revalued amount 
and revaluation is carried out at reasonable period.

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment on a straight line method 
so as to expenses the cost less residual value over their useful lives assets as 
prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except Dies & Moulds. The 
useful life of Dies & Moulds has been assessed as per the technical assessment of 
the management. The estimated useful lives and residual value are reviewed at the 
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any change in estimate accounted for 
on a prospective basis.

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in progress until construction and 
installation is completed and the asset is for intended use.

2.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as of the date of acquisition, 
as applicable, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any.

Intangible assets consist of software licenses which are amortised over license 
period which equates the useful life on a straight line basis over the period of its 
economic useful life.
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2.8 Inventory

Inventories consists of Raw Material, Work In Progress, Finished Goods, Stores & 
Spares and Packing Materials.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined 
on weighted average basis. 

Raw materials, Stores & Spares & Packing material: Cost includes cost of 
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location 
and condition on the weighted average basis. 

Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and 
labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating 
capacity on a weighted average basis. Cost of finished goods includes other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, 
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale.

2.9 Employee benefits

a)    Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service 
are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. 
and the expected cost of ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the 
employee renders the related service. A liability is recognised for the amount 
expected to be paid when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to pay 
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation 
can be estimated reliably.

b)   Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when 
employees have rendered services entitling them to such benefits.

c)    Defined Benefit Plan

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the 
Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each 
balance sheet date. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the 
effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan assets (excluding 
interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit 
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Past 
service cost, both vested and unvested, is recognised as an expense at the earlier of 
(a) when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; and (b) when the entity 
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recognises related restructuring costs or termination benefits.   

The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet represents the 
present value of the defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of scheme 
assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of 
available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme.

d)   Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the 
end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised 
as undiscounted liability at the balance sheet date. Compensated absences which 
are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which 
the employee renders the related services are recognised as an actuarially 
determined liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the 
balance sheet date.

2.10 Income Tax

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss 
for the period in respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a 
period. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible 
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961.

Current tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of 
reporting period for the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases 
used in the computation of taxable profit under Income tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 
However, in case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets 
or liabilities in a transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the 
taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized. 
Also, for temporary differences if any that may arise from initial recognition of 
goodwill, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary 
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differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which those deductible temporary difference can be utilized. In case of temporary 
differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction 
(other than business combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the 
accounting profit, deferred tax assets are not recognized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
profits will be available to allow the benefits of part or all of such deferred tax assets to 
be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to 
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are 
expected to be recovered or settled.

Presentation of Current and deferred tax

 Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in Other 
Comprehensive Income, in which case, the current and deferred tax 
income/expense are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a 
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either 
to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In 
case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the 
Company has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

2.11 Lease Finance Lease

Assets taken on lease by the Company in its capacity as lessee, where the Company 
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance 
lease. Such leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at lower of the fair 
value or the present value of the minimum lease payments and a liability is 
recognised for an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated between 
the liability and the interest cost so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on 
the outstanding liability for each year.

Operating Lease

Effective 1 April 2019, the company has adopted Ind AS 116 - Leases using a 
modified retrospective approach. Accordingly, on initial application of Ind AS 116, in 
respect of leases previously classified as operating leases, lease liability is 
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measured at the present value of remaining lease payments discounted using the 
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application and the right-of-use asset 
has been measured at the amount equal to lease liability, adjusted for any prepaid or 
accrued lease payments recognised in the balance sheet immediately before the 
date of initial application.

2.12 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Contingent Liability is disclosed in case of a present obligation arising from past 
events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation or where no reliable estimate is possible.  Contingent liabilities are not 
recognised in financial statements but are disclosed in notes.

Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.  Contingent assets 
are not recognised in financial statements and are disclosed in notes when it is 
virtually certain that economic benefits will inflow to the Company.

2.13 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing at the 
date of transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions 
settled during the year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss of the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are 
outstanding, as at the reporting date are translated at the closing exchange rates and 
the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are recognised using the exchange rate at date of initial transactions, are 
not retranslated.

In respect of forward contracts, the premium or discount on these contracts is 
recognized as income or expenditure over the period of the contract. Any profit or 
loss arising on the cancellation or the renewal of such contracts is recognized as 
income or expense for the year.

2.14 Impairment  Non-financial assets

The carrying amount of non- financial assets other than inventories are assessed at 
each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If any 
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such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognised as an expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss, for 
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and 
value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of estimated future 
cash flows using a discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing 
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels into cash generating units for 
which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent 
that asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment had been 
recognised.

Financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to 
be measured through a loss allowance. In determining the allowances for doubtful 
trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the 
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. 
The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is 
adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is 
based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and allowance rates used in the 
provision matrix.

2.15 Government Grant

Government grants are recognised when there is a reasonable assurance that the 
grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. Government 
grants relating to an expense item is recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
over the period necessary to match them with costs that they are intended to 
compensate are expensed. Government grants relating to asset is recognised as 
income in equal amounts  over the useful life of the asset.

2.16 Earning Per Share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted 
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax as adjusted for 
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive 
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares 
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number 
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of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares. The Company did not have any potentially dilutive securities 
in any of the years presented.

2.17 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on 
hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which 
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.18 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for 
its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset, until such time 
as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale. Interest income 
earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. The 
borrowing costs other than attributable to qualifying assets are recognised in the 
profit or loss in the period in which they incurred.

2.19 Financial Instruments

The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial 
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other 
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are 
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial asset or financial liabilities, 
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transactions costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sale of financial assets are recognised and 
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases 
or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame 
established by regulation or convention in the market place. All recognised financial 
assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair 
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.
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Classification of Financial Assets

(i)    Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within 
a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise 
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(ii)   Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets 
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. 

(iii)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is 
subsequently fair valued through profit or loss. 

(iv)  Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate method. For trade and other payables maturing within 
one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair 
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

(v)  Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the 
assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments 
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

c)  Derecognition

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer 
qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a 
financial liability) is derecognized from the company's balance sheet when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in 
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the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.20 Insurance Claim

Insurance Claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be 
admitted and to the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably 
and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

2.21 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting 
provided to the chief operating decision maker. The company consider footwear and 
accessories as its single segment in which company operates.

2.22  Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet 
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that 
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is unobservable.

2.23 Recent Accounting Pronouncement

Amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Combination

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations clarifies that to be 
considered a business, an integrated set of activities and assets must include, at a 
minimum, an input and a substantive process that, together, significantly contribute 
to the ability to create output. Furthermore, it clarifies that a business can exist 
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without including all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. These 
amendments are applicable to business combinations for which the acquisition date 
is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 
the 1 April 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that 
period. This amendment had no impact on the  financial statements of the Company 
but may impact future periods should the Company enter into any business 
combinations

Amendment to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8 : Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material clarify that materiality will 
depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in 
combination with other information, in the context of the financial statements. A 
misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to 
influence decisions made by the primary users. These amendments had no impact 
on the financial statements of, nor is there expected to be any future impact to the 
Company. These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods 
beginning on or after the 1 April 2020.
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Notes on Financial Statements

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises 
three types of risk  interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include  investments in equity shares, security 
deposits, trade and other receivables, deposits with banks and financial liabilities.
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Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Seventh Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the 
members of Lehar Footwears Limited(“the Company”) will be held on Tuesday, September 
28, 2021 at 10.30 A.M. at Registered Office at A-243 (A) Road No. 6, V.K.I. Area, Jaipur- 
302013 to transact the following business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 together with the reports of the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ramesh Chand Agarwal (DIN:00108287), who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

3. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. RAJ KUMAR AGARWAL AS MANAGING DIRECTOR 
OF THE COMPANY

To Consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following 
resolution as Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, and approval of the Board and subject to the provisions of 
Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof) read with Schedule- V of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the 
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. Raj 
Kumar Agarwal as Managing Director of the Company for a period of five years with 
effect from December 01, 2021 as well as the payment of salary, commission and 
perquisites (hereinafter referred to as “remuneration”), upon the terms and conditions 
as detailed in the explanatory statement attached hereto, which is hereby approved 
and sanctioned with authority to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and 
conditions of the said re-appointment and / or agreement in such manner as may be 
agreed to between the Board of Directors and Mr. Raj Kumar Agarwal. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remuneration payable to Mr. Raj Kumar Agarwal, 
shall not exceed the overall ceiling of the total managerial remuneration as provided 
under Schedule- V of the Companies Act, 2013 or such other limits as may be 
prescribed from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such 
acts, deeds and things and execute all such documents, instruments and writings as 
may be required and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any 
Committee of Directors or Director(s) to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

SPECIAL BUSINESS
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For Lehar Footwears Limited

Sd/-

                                                                                              Ramesh Chand Agarwal

Chairman

DIN: 00108287
Dated: 11.08.2021

Place: Jaipur
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4. REVISION OF REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

To Consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following 
resolution as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 197, 198 read with schedule 
V of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof 
for the time being in force) and pursuant to Articles of Association of the company, and 
pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, and 
approval of the Board,the consent of the Members of the Company, be and is hereby 
accorded for revision in the maximum remuneration payable to Ramesh Chand 
Agarwal (Chairman), Raj Kumar Agarwal (Managing Director) and Naresh Kumar 
Agarwal (Whole-time Director), shall be the maximum remuneration in the event of 
loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the aforesaid period, and the 
other terms and conditions of their appointment remaining the same, with the liberty 
to the Board of Directors to alter, vary and modify the terms and conditions of the said 
remuneration, in such manner as may be agreed and in accordance with the Act or 
such other applicable provisions or any amendment thereto and, if necessary, 
permission, sanction(s) as may be required from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Regulation 17(6)(e) of SEBI (LODR) 
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018 and other applicable provisions, if any, the consent 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the continuation of payment of 
remuneration to Ramesh Chand Agarwal (Chairman), Raj Kumar Agarwal (Managing 
Director) and Naresh Kumar Agarwal (Whole-time Director), who are Executive 
Directors and Promoters of the Company notwithstanding: i) annual remuneration 
payable to each of them exceeding Rs.5 Crore or 2.5 per cent of the net profits of the 
Company calculated as per the provisions of section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
whichever is higher; or ii) their aggregate annual remuneration exceeding 5 per cent 
of the net profits of the Company calculated as per the provisions of Section 198 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, till the expiry of their current term.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company or the Company 
Secretary or such other person as authorized by the Board, be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and take all such steps as 
may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”
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1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy/ proxies 

to attend and vote instead of himself/herself and such proxy/ proxies need not be a member 

of the company. The instrument appointing the proxy/ proxies should be  deposited 

at the registered office of the company, duly completed and signed, not less than 

forty-eight (48) hours before commencement of the AGM i.e. by 10:30 A.M. on 

Sunday, September 26, 2021.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50)and holding in 

the aggregate not more than ten percent (10%) of the total share capital of the Company 

carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent (10%), of the total share 

capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such 

person shall not act as proxy for another person or shareholder.

Proxies submitted on behalf of Companies, Societies, Partnership Firms, etc. must be 

supported by appropriate resolution / authority, as applicable.

2. Information or details pertaining to the Directors proposed to be appointed or re-appointed 

pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial 

Standard-2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries  of India are provided in 

Annexure A of this Notice.

3. The Company has notified closure of Register of Members and Share Transfer Books from 

Wednesday, September 22, 2021 to Tuesday, September 28, 2021(both days inclusive) for 

the purpose of the Annual General Meeting. 

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members 

holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their 

Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members 

holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company / Bigshare Services 

Private Limited.

Members holding shares in electronic form may note that bank particulars registered 

against their respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of 

dividend (if declared). The Company or its Registrar and Transfer Agent,                                        

Bigshare Services Private Limited (“Bigshare”) cannot act on any request received directly 

from the members holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or 

bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the Depository 

Participant by the members.

5. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any 

change in their address or bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they 

are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form are 
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requested to intimate any change in their address or bank mandates immediately to the 

company or Bigshare.

6. Members are requested to produce the enclosed attendance slip/e-voting form, duly signed 

as per the specimen signature recorded with the Company, for admission to the meeting 

hall. Members holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to bring their DP-ID and 

Client-ID numbers for easier identification for attendance at the meeting.

7. All documents referred to in the Notice and Explanatory Statement are available for 

inspection at the registered office of the Company during the business hours between 10:30 

A.M to 6:00 P.M on all working days of the Company upto the date of the Annual General 

Meeting of the Company

8. Members desirous of getting any information on the accounts or operations of the Company 

are requested to forward their queries to the Company at least Ten (10) working days prior to 

the meeting, so that the required information can be made available at the meeting.

9. Members are requested to immediately notify any change in their address either to the 

Company or its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. In case the shares are held in 

dematerialised form, this information should be sent by the Members to their respective 

depository participants. Members are requested to quote their folio numbers / DP-ID and 

Client-ID numbers in their correspondence with the Company.

10. In case of change in residential status of Non-Resident Indian Shareholders, the same 

should be immediately informed to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company 

along with particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, 

account type, account number and address of the bank.  

11. Members are requested to furnish or update their e-mail IDs with the Registrar for sending 

the soft copies of the Annual Report of the Company as required vide circular no. 17/2011 

dated April 21, 2011 and circular no. 18/2011 dated April 29, 2011 issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs and to avail remote e-voting facility in respect of the resolutions which 

would be passed at the General Meetings of the Company.

12. As a matter of economy, copies of the Annual Report will not be distributed at the venue of 

the Annual General Meeting. Members are, therefore, requested to bring their copy of the 

Annual Report to the meeting.

13. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the 

order of names will be entitled to vote.

14. Corporate members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution 

authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting. 

15. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register 

their e-mail address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, 
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Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically.

16. Pursuant to the prohibition imposed vide Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) 

issued by the ICSI and the MCA circular, no gifts/coupons shall be distributed at the Meeting.

th17. Members may also note that the notice of 27  Annual General Meeting and Annual Report 

for the year 2020-21is also available on the website of the company www.leharfootwear.com 

for their download.

18. The route map to the venue of the Meeting is included in this notice for easy location.

19.  E- VOTING:
I. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 read with the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their 
thright to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 27  Annual General meeting 

(AGM) by electronic means. 

II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall also be made available at the AGM and 

members attending the meeting who have not casted their vote by remote 

e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

III. The members who have casted their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also 

attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

IV. The remote e-voting period commences on Saturday, September 25, 2021 (09:00 am) and 

ends on Monday, September 27,2021 (5:00 pm).

The Board of Directors has appointed Vinod Kumar Naredi, Prop. of M/s. Naredi Vinod & 

Associates (Membership No. ACS: 20453 CP NO. 7994), Practising Company Secretary as 

the scrutinizer for e-voting, to unblock the votes in favour or against, if any, and to report 

forthwith to the Chairman. The scrutinizer shall be responsible to conduct e-voting in fair and 

transparent manner.

Any person who become member of the company after dispatch of Notice of the meeting and 

holding share as on cut-off date may obtain ID Password by following the procedure mention 

in the instructions for members for voting electronically as given below.
Members attending the meeting who have not  casted their vote by remote e-voting shall be 

able to exercise their right at the meeting and that the members who have casted their vote 

by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled 

to cast their vote again. Voting by Members present at the Meeting shall be done by ballot or 

polling paper.
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In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently 

Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at under help section or write and 

email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. Or company secretary, Lehar Footwears Limited 

A-243 (A) Road No. 6 VKI Area, Jaipur, 302013 email: csco@leharfootwear.com

The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:-

1. The voting period begins on Saturday, September 25, 2021 (09:00 am) and ends on 

Monday, September 27,2021 (5:00 pm).During this period shareholders' of the 

Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off  

date (record date) of Tuesday, September 21, 2021 may cast their vote 

electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

2. Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

3. Click on Shareholders

4. Now Enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with 

the Company.

5. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

6. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 

voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

7. If you are a first time user then follow the steps given below:
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1. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

2. Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the Company selection screen. 
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu 
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. 
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of 
any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting 
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other 
person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

3. For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the  
resolutions contained in this Notice.

4. Click on the EVSN for Lehar Footwears Limited.

5. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the  
option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that 
you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

6. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

7. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box 
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

8. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

9. You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on 
the Voting page.

10. If D-mat account holder has forgotten the changed password then enter the User ID and the  
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the 
system.

11. Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app m-Voting available for android 
based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and 
Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store 
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respectively. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your 
mobile.

12. Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are 
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporate.

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote 
on.

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and 
on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer 
to verify the same.

13. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section 
or write an email to .

In case of members receiving the physical copy:

(A) Please follow all steps as mentioned above to cast vote.

(B) The voting period begins on Saturday, September 25, 2021 (09:00 am) and ends on Monday, 
September 27,2021 (5:00 pm).During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares 
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Tuesday, September 21, 
2021, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 
thereafter.

(C) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com  under help section 
or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
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Item No. 3:

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on June 25, 2021, subject to the 

approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting under the applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, have sought to re-appoint Mr. Raj Kumar Agarwal as Managing Director of the 

Company for a period of five years with effect from December 01, 2021. The tenure of present 

appointment of Mr. Raj Kumar Agarwal as Managing Director will expire on November 30, 2021. The 

terms and conditions of remuneration as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

and applicable to the Managing Director are as under given below and your directors have confirmed 

that the proposed remuneration is strictly in conformity with Schedule V, annexed to the Companies 

Act, 2013.

Remuneration:

(I) Basic Salary: Rs. 2,00,000/- per month.

(II) Perquisites: 

In addition to Basic Salary, the following Perquisites not exceeding the overall ceiling 
prescribed under Schedule V, annexed to the Companies Act, 2013 will be provided to the 
Managing Director: 

(i) Provision of Company's car with driver for use on Company's business, Mobile Phone 
and Telephone at residence will not be considered as perquisites. 

(ii) Personal long distance calls on telephone and use of Car for private purpose shall be 
billed by the Company to the Managing Director. 

(iii) Reimbursement of entertainment, travelling and all other expenses, actually and 
properly incurred for the business of the Company. 

(iv) No sitting fees shall be payable to the Managing Director for attending the Meetings of 
the Board of Directors or Committee thereof. 

The terms and conditions, as above, may be altered / varied from time to time by the Board of 
Directors as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem fit within the maximum amount payable to the 
appointee in accordance with Schedule V annexed to the Companies Act, 2013 as may be 
amended from time to time or any other relevant Statutory enactment(s) thereof in this regard. 

Where in any year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the total remuneration 
payable to Mr. Raj Kumar Agarwal, Managing Director, by way of salary/ perquisites, as specified 
above, shall be limited to the amount laid down under Schedule V annexed to the Companies Act, 
2013. 

(III) Other terms & Conditions: 

(i) Mr. Raj Kumar Agarwal will perform the duties and exercise the powers, which from time to time 
may be assigned to or vested in him by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
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For Lehar Footwears Limited

Sd/-
Ramesh Chand Agarwal
Chairman
DIN: 00108287
      

Dated: 11.08.2021
Place: Jaipur

By the order of the Board.
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(III) Other terms & Conditions: 

(i) Executive Directors will perform the duties and exercise the powers, which from time 
to time may be assigned to or vested in him by the Board of Directors of the Company.\

(ii) The agreement may be terminated by either party giving to the other party one-month's prior 
notice in writing to that effect. 

Your Directors recommend the proposed Resolution for your approval. 

None of the Directors except Mr. Naresh Agarwal, Mr. Raj Kumar Agarwal and Mr. Ramesh Chand 
Agarwal, Executive Chairman being relatives are interested in the resolution.

By the order of the Board

payable to Executive Director, by way of salary/ perquisites, as specified above, shall be limited to 
the amount laid down under Schedule V annexed to the Companies Act, 2013. 
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(ii) The agreement may be terminated by either party giving to the other party one-month's 
prior notice in writing to that effect. 

(iii) The said re-appointment of Mr. Raj Kumar Agarwal on the terms and conditions as set 
above is subject to the approval of the shareholders in their General Meeting. Your Directors 
recommend the proposed Resolution for your approval. 

None of the Directors except Mr. Raj Kumar Agarwal, being the appointee and Mr. Naresh Agarwal, 
Executive Director and Mr. Ramesh Chand Agarwal, Executive Chairman being relatives are 
interested in the resolution.

Item No. 4:

According to the new Act, director's responsibilities have increased. Keeping in view the enhanced 
role, responsibilities and duties of directors, it is considered appropriate that the remuneration 
payable to the Directors by the Company should be commensurate with their increased role, 
responsibilities and duties. In order to fulfil the same the company is adopting Schedule V of the Act 
which provides for payment of remuneration to the directors in case of inadequacy of profits.

The Board of Directors of the Company have, subject to the approval of members of the Company, 
proposed to remunerate the executive directors (i.e. the Managing Director, Whole-time Directors, 
Chairman), may be paid remuneration not exceeding the limits, as computed in the manner laid down 
in Section 197 together with Schedule V of the Act.

Remuneration:

(I) Basic Salary: Rs. 2,00,000/- per month.

(II) Perquisites: 

(i) Provision of Company's car with driver for use on Company's business, Mobile 
Phoneand Telephone at residence will not be considered as perquisites. 

(ii) Personal long distance calls on telephone and use of Car for private purpose 
shall be billed by the Company to the Executive Director. 

(iii) Reimbursement of entertainment, travelling and all other expenses, actually 
and properly incurred for the business of the Company. 

(iv) No sitting fees shall be payable to the Executive Director for attending the 
Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee thereof. 

The terms and conditions, as above, may be altered / varied from time to time by the Board of 
Directors as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem fit within the maximum amount payable to the 
appointee in accordance with Schedule V annexed to the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended 
from time to time or any other relevant Statutory enactment(s) thereof in this regard. 

Where in any year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the total remuneration 

In addition to Basic Salary, the following Perquisites not exceeding the overall ceiling 
prescribed under Schedule V, annexed to the Companies Act, 2013 will be provided to the 
Managing Director:  
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ANNEXURE A

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India]

2019170 1492618
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Form No. MGT-11

PROXY FORM 

Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the company: LEHAR FOOTWEARS LIMITED
CIN: L19201RJ1994PLC008196

Registered office: Registered Office: A-243(A) ROAD NO. 06, V K I AREA, JAIPUR

Name of the member (s): 
Registered address: 
E-mail Id: 
Folio No/ Client Id: 
DP ID:
 I/We, being the member (s) of ……. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint 

Signature of shareholder 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered 

Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

AFFIX RS. ONE

REVENUE STAMP

1. Name: ……………………
   Address: 
   E-mail Id: 

Signature…..............or failing him
2. Name: ……………………

Address: 
E-mail Id: 
Signature…..............or failing him 

3. Name: …………………… 
Address: 
E-mail Id: 
Signature: ……………

FOOTWEAR

R

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General 
Meeting of the company, to be held on Tuesday, September 28, 2021 at 10:30 A.M at A-243(A), Road 
No. 06, V.K.I. Area, Jaipur 302013 Rajasthan and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 
resolutions as are indicated below:

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2021 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and 
the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ramesh Chand Agrawal (DIN: 00108287), who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

Special Business

3. To re-appoint Mr. Raj Kumar Agarwal as Managing Director of the Company

4. To revise the remuneration payable to Executive Directors

Resolution No.

112



ATTENDANCE SLIP

LEHAR FOOTWEARS LIMITED

A-243(A) ROAD NO. 06, V K I AREA, JAIPUR -302013 (RAJ.)

(Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall)

Folio No. #_____________________

No. of Shares held ______________

DP ID* __________________________

CLIENT ID* ______________________

Member's / Proxy's name (in Block Letter)

# Applicable for shares held in Physical Form

* Applicable for shares held in Dematerialized Form 

PLEASE CUT HERE AND BRING THE ABOVE ATTENDANCE SLIP TO THE MEETING

.............................................................................................................................................

FOOTWEAR

R

th
I hereby record my presence at the 27  Annual General Meeting of the company to be 

held at A-243(A) Road No. 06, V K I Area, Jaipur- 302013(RAJ.) on Tuesday, September 

28, 2021 at 10:30 A.M.

ROAD MAP
From Sindhi Camp Bus Stand
to Lehar Footwears Limited
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LEHAR FOOTWEARS LIMITED

pyrh pys ygj gj dne gj lQj 

Regd. Office & Works

A-243(A) ROAD NO. 6, V. K. I. AREA, JAIPUR - 302 013

Ph.: 0141-4157777 (30 Lines)

e-mail : info@leharfootwear.com

URL : www.leharfootwear.com

R

FOOTWEAR
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